
AGENDA  
 

CANFIELD CITY COUNCIL 
 

July 12, 2023-5:30 P.M. 
 

FRANCIS J. McLAUGHLIN MUNICIPAL BUILDING 
 
 
1. Call to Order. 
 
2. Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
3. Roll Call:  Quorum is Present - Meeting is in Session. 
 
4. Proclamations & Presentations.   
      
5. Approval of Minutes. 
 
6. Reading of Communications. 
 
7. Reports of Committees, Boards, Mayor’s Report, City Manager, Finance Director, Chief of Police, 

Zoning Inspector and Public Works Superintendent. 
 
8. Public questions from residents (or representative) related to the above referenced reports. Questions 

may be limited to three (3) minutes. 
 
9. Recognition of Persons Desiring to Appear Before Council. 
 
10.  OLD BUSINESS 
  Note: After each item is placed on the table for action, public comments from residents (or 

representative) as to that business item are received.  May be limited to three (3) minutes per person 
and thirty (30) minutes total. 

 
A. An Ordinance Amending Canfield Codified Ordinance Section 1127.03 “Board of Appeals”. 

 
 Description: This change gives Council the “final say” if something is denied by the Planning 
& Zoning Commission Acting as Board of Appeals.   In the past it went to County Court of 
Common Pleas. 

 
Action Needed:  Approval of Ordinance 
 
Attachment(s):  Ordinance and Recommendation from P&Z 

 

 
11. NEW BUSINESS 

Note: After each item is placed on the table for action, public comments from residents (or 
representative) as to that business item are received.  May be limited to three (3) minutes per person 
and thirty (30) minutes total. 

 
A. An Ordinance Authorizing the City Manager to Enter Into A Contract for the Overbrook 

Storm Sewer Improvement Project and Declaring an Emergency.  

 

 Description: The Overbrook Storm Sewer Improvement Project will replace 
approximately 1,050 linear feet of existing 15” storm sewer with new 30” storm sewer 
from Garwood Drive to 310 Southview.  The project impact area will be entirely within 
existing storm sewer easements located along the back-property lines of the homes on 
Southview and Overbrook and in the right of way of Garwood Drive.  
 
The project bid opening for this project took place on June 7, 2023 with the apparent 
low bidder being Yarian Brothers Construction for an amount of $272,853.00. This 



Ordinance authorizes the City Manager to enter into a contract with Yarian Brothers 
Construction for the replacement per bid documents.  
 
Action Needed: 
Approval of Ordinance 
 
Attachment(s): Ordinance, recommendation from MS Consultants, 
Inc. and bid tabulation.  
 

  Public Comments 

 

B. An Ordinance Authorizing the City Manager to Enter Into A Contract for the purchase, 

Installation and Grinding of Asphaltic Concrete (Street Paving) and to Declare Said 

Ordinance an Emergency.  

 
Description: Staff has worked with our City Engineer’s in preparing and bidding the 2023 Resurfacing 
Program projects.  The 2023 Street Resurfacing Program consisted of a list of streets considered as 
the “base bid” and a list of individual streets to be considered alternatives outlined below: 
 

Street Name Amount 

Sleepy Hollow Drive (Base Bid) $96,252.50 

Millbrook Street (Base Bid) $74,700.00 

Greenmont Drive (Base Bid) $116,455.00 

Miscellaneous Repairs (Base Bid) $41,000.00 

Fair Park (Alternate) #1 $128,850.00 

Greasel Park (Alternate) #2 $41,325.00 

E. Main Repairs (Alternate) #3 $26,250.00 

 
In order to optimize bid pricing, the 2023 Street Resurfacing Program was performed in 
cooperation with Canfield Township and Poland Township.  Advertisement for bids were published 
in the Vindicator on June 13th and June 20th.  The bid opening was conducted on June 28th.  
There was a total of three (3) firms that bid on the 2023 Annual Resurfacing program with the 
apparent low bidder being Lindy Paving.  
 
This Ordinance authorizes the City Manager to enter into a contract with Lindy Paving for the 2023 
Canfield Resurfacing Project for an amount not to exceed $395,982.50.  This consists of the base 
streets with alternates #2, #3..  
 
This Ordinance is being passed as an emergency in order to coordinate with the participating 
community in a timely manner.  
 
Action Needed: 
Approval of Ordinance authorizing City Manager to enter into a contract with Lindy Paving for the 
2023 Canfield Resurfacing Project. 
 
Attachment(s):  
Ordinance authorizing City Manager to enter into a contract with Lindy Paving for the 2023 Canfield 
Resurfacing Project. 
 
Engineer’s Award Recommendation Letter 
 
Bid Tabulation 
  
Public Comments 

 
 

C. A Motion Amending A Contract Between the City of Canfield and the Ohio Patrolmen’s 

Benevolent Association (Police Officers, Unit A; Dispatchers, Unit B; Lieutenants and 

Sergeants, Unit C) for Years, 2021, 2022 and 2023.   

 

Description: We previously passed this exact Motion regarding the Contract for the Ohio 

Patrolmen’s Benevolent Association on June 7th. There has been one change to the contract 



since that time.  In Section 1:  Lateral Transfers- The Employer may hire officers or 

dispatchers from other law enforcement agencies. These officers and dispatchers can qualify 

as “lateral transfers”.  This Article is applicable only to lateral transfers. Except as specified 

in this Article, all other rights and benefits provided in this Agreement shall also apply to 

laterally transferred officers and dispatchers. 

 

Section 8. Placement in Wage Scale- At the discretion of the Chief of Police, laterally 

transferred officers or dispatchers may be placed within the wage scale, on a pro-rated basis, 

based upon full time experience with prior employers(s). Upon their anniversary date of hire, 

laterally transferred officers shall advance to the next step, plus the originally calculated pro-

rated amount, unless they were initially placed at the highest.    

 

Action Needed: Passage of the Motion 

 

Attachment(s):  Explanation of Change to Police Contract.  

 

12. Council Comments.  

 

13. Adjournment 

 

 

 



Introduced by: ___________ 
First Reading: ___________ 

 
 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING 
CANFIELD CODIFIED ORDINANCE 

SECTION 1127.03 “BOARD OF APPEALS” 
 
 

WHEREAS, the Council for the City of Canfield deems it to be in the best 
interests of the citizens of the City to modify Ordinance Section 1127.03 to allow 
for appeals from the Board of Appeals to be submitted to the Council of the City 
of Canfield, and 
 
WHEREAS, Council has determined that such change is necessary to properly 
control land use and will be to the benefit, safety and welfare of the citizens of 
the City, NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED 
 
Section 1. That Canfield Codified Ordinance Section 1127.03 “Board of 
Appeals” shall be amended to read as follows: 
 
1127.03 BOARD OF APPEALS. 
   The Planning Commission shall function as the Board of Appeals and shall 
perform the following functions: 
   (a)    Administrative Appeals. To hear and decide appeals where it is alleged 
that there is an error in any interpretation, judgment, determination or decision 
made by the Zoning Inspector in the administration and/or enforcement of the 
provisions of this Ordinance. No public hearing shall be held. 
      (Ord. 1973-44. Passed 12-18-73.) 
   (b)    Adjustments. To authorize upon appeal, where because of physical 
circumstances, exceptional narrowness, shallowness, shape, topographic 
condition, extraordinary lot conditions, or other conditions peculiar to the 
property, building or structure in question, there is no possibility that the property 
can be developed in strict conformity with the provisions of this Ordinance and 
adjustment is therefore necessary to enable the reasonable use of the property, 
provided such minimum relief can be granted without substantial detriment to 
the public good and does not substantially impair the intent of this Ordinance, 
an adjustment may be considered under the following terms and conditions. A 
public hearing shall be ordered by the Board. Notice thereof shall be given by 
the secretary of the Board not less than twenty-five days prior to the date of the 
public hearing by publishing the notice in a newspaper of general circulation in 
the Municipality. Notice shall also be given within twenty days to the parties 
having proprietary interest in the land located within 200 feet of the property in 
question, as named in the application by such other means as the granting 
authority deems appropriate. Failure of any person, other than the applicant, to 
receive notice of any hearing or public hearing shall in no way affect the validity 
of the action taken. No adjustment shall be granted unless the Board finds that 
all of the following conditions exist: 
      (1)    The proposed adjustment will not constitute a change, including an 
adjustment in use, on the Zoning Map. In no case shall the Planning 
Commission functioning as the Board approve an adjustment for a use which is 
not a permitted use in the zoning district in which the property, building or 
structure is located. 
      (2)    The special circumstances or conditions applying to the building or 
land in question are peculiar to such lot or property and do not result from the 
actions of the applicant and do not apply generally to other land or buildings in 
the vicinity. 
      (3)    That the literal interpretation of the provisions of this Ordinance would 
deprive the applicant of rights commonly enjoyed by other properties in the 
same zoning district under the terms of this Ordinance. 



      (4)    The granting of the application is necessary for the preservation and 
enjoyment of the substantial property right and not merely to serve as a 
convenience to the applicant. 
      (5)    That granting the adjustment requested will provide the minimum 
necessary relief to alleviate the hardship and will not confer on the applicant 
any special privilege which is denied by this Ordinance to other lands, structures 
or buildings in the same zoning district. 
      (6)    That granting of the adjustment will be in harmony with the general 
purpose and intent of this Ordinance, and will not be injurious to the 
neighborhood or otherwise detrimental to the public welfare. 
Following disapproval by the Board of an application or request for adjustment 
from the literal interpretation of this Ordinance, no subsequent application 
requesting the same adjustment shall be filed by any applicant, whether the 
same person, firm or corporation, until the expiration of twelve months after the 
original or subsequent disapproval. 
The Board shall cause to be made a record of all its proceedings, setting forth 
its reasons for its decisions. Such record, immediately following the Board's 
decision, shall be filed in the offices of the Board, and shall be open to public 
inspection. Appeals from the Board in their decisions on the administrative 
error, adjustments, conditional uses, special exceptions and related matters 
shall be to the Council of the City of Canfield who shall conduct a public hearing 
in compliance with Sections 1131.05 and take action pursuant to Section 
1131.06. 
   (c)    Conditional Uses. The Board may hear and decide upon, in accordance 
with the provisions of this Ordinance, applications for a conditional use permit. 
The purpose of a conditional use permit is to allow a proper integration into the 
Municipality of uses which may only be suitable in specific locations within 
certain zoning districts or only if such uses are designed or laid out in a 
particular manner on the site. A conditional use permit shall be required for all 
uses listed as conditionally permitted uses in Chapter 1141. 
      (1)    Application for a conditional use permit shall be made by the property 
owner, or agent thereof, to the Board on a form prescribed by the Municipality, 
and shall include maps and drawings necessary to demonstrate that the 
conditions set forth in Chapter 1151 shall be fulfilled. 
      (2)    In considering an application for a conditional use permit, the Board 
must make an affirmative finding that the proposed conditional use is to be 
located in a district wherein such use may be conditionally permitted, and that 
all conditions for approval of conditional uses have been met. 
      (3)    The Board shall give due regard to the nature and condition of all 
adjacent uses and structures and the consistency therewith of the proposed 
conditional use and any potential nuisances. 
         (Ord. 1973-44. Passed 12-18-73.) 
      (4)    A public hearing shall be ordered and held by the Board. Notice thereof 
shall be given not less than twenty-five days prior to the date of public hearing 
by publishing notice in a newspaper of general circulation in the Municipality. 
Notice shall also be given within twenty days to the parties having proprietary 
interest in the land located within 200 feet of the property in question by such 
other means as the granting authority deems appropriate. Failure of any person, 
other than the applicant, to receive notice of any hearing or public hearing, in 
no way shall affect the validity of action taken. (Ord. 1973-44. Passed 12-18-
73; Ord. 1977-36. Passed 12-6-77.) 
      (5)    Any existing lawful use which is considered as a conditionally 
permitted use by this Ordinance, which is located in a zoning district in which 
such use is conditionally permitted, shall be considered as a conforming use. 
Any expansion of such a conditionally permitted use involving the enlargement 
of buildings, structure and/or land area devoted to such conditional use, shall 
be subject to the procedures outlined in this section. 
      (6)    In any case where an approved conditional use permit has not been 
used within six months of the date on which it was granted, the permit shall 
expire unless an extension of the above time period has been authorized by the 
Board. 
         (Ord. 1973-44. Passed 12-18-73.) 

https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/canfield/latest/canfield_oh/0-0-0-14242#JD_1141
https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/canfield/latest/canfield_oh/0-0-0-14524#JD_1151


   (d)    Contents of Application. Applications for adjustments or conditional use 
permit requests shall include at least the following information: 
      (1)    Name, address and telephone number of applicant; 
      (2)    Location of the property, lot number of the tract and the present zoning 
district; 
      (3)    Plat layout drawn to scale, showing the actual shape and dimension 
of the lot or parcel and all lots and parcels within 200 feet thereof which shall 
be attached to each application; 
      (4)    A list of all property owners within 200 feet, contiguous to and directly 
across the street from this parcel to be granted the adjustment or conditional 
use permit and others that may have a substantial interest in the case; 
      (5)    Specific reason justifying the application for adjustments or conditional 
use permit; (Ord. 1992-35. Passed 9-1-92.) 
      (6)    A non-refundable fee of three hundred dollars ($300.00) payable to 
the City to cover administrative costs of the adjustment or conditional use 
permit. (Ord. 2020-3. Passed 2-5-20.) 
 
Section 2. That this Ordinance and all deliberations relating to the passage 
of this Ordinance were held in open meetings of this Council, all pursuant to 
Section 121.22 of the Ohio Revised Code and Section 3.11 of the Charter of 
the Municipality of Canfield 
 
PASSED IN COUNCIL THIS _______ day of ___________________, 2023. 
 
 
     ________________________________ 
      PRESIDENT OF COUNCIL 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
____________________ 
CLERK OF COUNCIL 
 
 
 

Certification of Publication 
 

 I, the undersigned Clerk of Council of the City of Canfield, Ohio, hereby 
certify that the foregoing Ordinance was posted in a prominent place at the 
Municipal Building, Canfield, Ohio for seven continuous days, to 
wit:___________________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________________. 
 
 
          
          
    _________________________________ 
      CLERK OF COUNCIL 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
__________________________ 
MUNICIPAL ATTORNEY 

 





Introduced by: ____________ 
First Reading: _____________ 
 
 

ORDINANCE 
 

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO ENTER INTO A 
CONTRACT FOR THE OVERBROOK STORM SEWER IMPROVEMENT PROJECT 

AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY.  
 

 WHEREAS, the storm sewer on Overbrook needs to be replaced; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Council has received bids for the project; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Council desires to proceed with said project.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CANFIELD, OHIO: 
 
 Section 1: The City Manager is hereby authorized to enter into a contract with Yarian 
Brothers Construction, Inc. for the replacement of storm sewer on Overbrook pursuant to 
the bid submitted.  
 
 Section 2:  The cost of said project shall not exceed $272,853.00. 
 
 Section 3: This Ordinance is hereby declared an emergency measure necessary for 
preservation of public peace, health and safety of the inhabitants of the City of Canfield, 
Ohio Said emergency exists because the bid documents say that the award must be made 
within 60 days of the bid opening. The bid opening was June 7, 2023. 
 
 Section 4:  That this Ordinance and all deliberations relating to the passage of this 
Ordinance were held in open meetings of this Council, all pursuant to Section 121.22 of the 
Ohio Revised Code and Section 3.11 of the Charter of the Municipality of Canfield.  
 
PASSED IN COUNCIL THIS _____________DAY OF ________________________A.D., 2023. 
 
       ________________________ 
       PRESIDENT OF COUNCIL  
 
ATTEST: 
____________________ 
CLERK OF COUNCIL  
 

Certification of Publication 
 

 I, the undersigned Clerk of Council of the City of Canfield, Ohio, hereby certify that 
the foregoing Ordinance was posted in a prominent place at the Municipal Building, Canfield, 
Ohio for seven continuous days, to-wit: ________________________________________ 
_______________________________________________________________________. 
        _______________________ 
        CLERK OF COUNCIL  
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
___________________________ 
MUNICIPAL ATTORNEY 







Introduced by: ____________ 
First Reading: _____________ 

ORDINANCE 

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER 
TO ENTER INTO A CONTRACT FOR THE PURCHASE, INSTALLATION 

AND GRINDING OF ASPHALTIC CONCRETE (STREET PAVING) 
AND TO DECLARE SAID ORDINANCE AN EMERGENCY 

WHEREAS, the Council of the City of Canfield has determined that streets within the City 
need to be periodically resurfaced; and  

WHEREAS, specifications for said resurfacing have been prepared; and 

WHEREAS, bids have been received; and 

WHEREAS, Council now deems it to be in the best interest of the City to award a contract for 
the street repairs and resurfacing. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CANFIELD, OHIO: 

Section 1:  The City Manager is hereby authorized to enter into a contract with Lindy 
Paving, Inc. for the purchase, installation and grinding of asphaltic concrete as detailed in 
their bid attached hereto. 

Section 2:  The said authorization shall not exceed a cost of $395,982.50.

Section 3:  That this Ordinance and all deliberations relating to the passage of this 
Ordinance were held in open meetings of this Council, all pursuant to Section 121.22 of the 
Ohio Revised Code and Section 3.11 of the Charter of the Municipality of Canfield.  

Section 4:  This Ordinance is hereby declared to be an emergency measure necessary 
for the preservation of public peace, health and safety of the inhabitants of the City of 
Canfield, Ohio.  Said emergency exists by reason of the fact that it is necessary to 
coordinate with the participating communities in a timely manner.   

PASSED IN COUNCIL THIS _________DAY OF ____________________________A.D., 2023. 

_________________________ 
PRESIDENT OF COUNCIL  

ATTEST: 

__________________ 
CLERK OF COUNCIL  



CERTIFICATION OF PUBLICATION 
 

 I, the undersigned Clerk of Council of the City of Canfield, Ohio, hereby certify that 
the foregoing Ordinance was posted in a prominent place at the Municipal Building, Canfield, 
Ohio for seven continuous days, to-wit: _______________________________________ 
________________________________________________________________________. 
 
      _______________________ 
      CLERK OF COUNCIL 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
_______________________ 
MUNICIPAL ATTORNEY 
 















Introduced By: _________________   Motion No. ____________ 
 

MOTION 
 
   A MOTION AMENDING A CONTRACT BETWEEN 
            THE CITY OF CANFIELD AND THE OHIO 
            PATROLMEN’S BENEVOLENT ASSOCIATION 
            (POLICE OFFICERS, UNIT A; DISPATCHERS, 
            UNIT B; LIEUTENANTS AND SERGEANTS, UNIT C) FOR 
                                YEARS 2021, 2022 and 2023. 
 
  WHEREAS, representatives of the City of Canfield have negotiated a 
three-year (3 year) agreement with The Ohio Patrolmen’s Benevolent Association 
(Police officers, Unit A; Dispatchers, Unit B; Lieutenants and Sergeants, Unit C) 
pursuant to Ohio Revised Code Section 4117; and 
 
  WHEREAS, Council desires to amend said contract of the City of Canfield. 
 
  NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY MOVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF CANFIELD, OHIO: 
 
  Section 1:  The Council of the City of Canfield hereby amends the 
agreement by and between the City of Canfield and The Ohio Patrolmen’s Benevolent 
Association (Patrol Officers, Unit A; Dispatchers, Unit B; Lieutenants and Sergeants, 
Unit C), a copy of which Agreement is attached hereto and made a part hereof. 
 
  Section 2:  That this Motion and all deliberations relating to the passage of 
this Motion were held in open meetings of this Council, all pursuant to Section 121.22 of 
the Ohio Revised Code and Section 3.11 of the Charter of the Municipality of Canfield. 
 
PASSED IN COUNCIL THIS ______ DAY OF ______________________ A.D., 2023. 
 
        ________________________ 
        CLERK OF COUNCIL 
 

Certification of Publication 
 

  I, the undersigned Clerk of Council of the City of Canfield, Ohio, hereby 
certify that the foregoing Motion was posed in a prominent place at the Municipal 
Building, Canfield, Ohio for seven continuous days, to-wit: _______________________ 
________________________________________________________. 
 
        ________________________ 
        CLERK OF COUNCIL 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
___________________________ 
MUNICIPAL ATTORNEY 
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MINUTES 
 

CANFIELD CITY COUNCIL  
REGULAR MEETING 

JUNE 21, 2023-5:30 PM 
 

 The meeting was called to order by John Morvay, President of Council, followed by the 
Pledge of Allegiance. The Clerk called the roll to which a quorum responded as follows:  Mr. 
Dragish, Mr. Morvay, Mr. Nacarato, Mr. Neff and Mr. Tieche.  
 
Staff present: Charles Colucci, Chief of Police and Acting City Manager; Christine Stack-Clayton, 
Finance Director; Mike Cook, Zoning Inspector and John Rapp, Public Works Superintendent.  
 
  Under PROCLAMATIONS & PRESENTATIONS, there were none.  
 
  Under MINUTES, the Minutes of the Regular Meeting on June 7, 2023 were 
approved as presented.  
 
  Under READING OF COMMUNICATIONS: 
 
MR. TIECHE:  The only communication I had was verbal.  I had a question from my neighbor.  He 
wanted to know whether we would consider changing the traffic signal to flashing.  I indicated 
that, I thought we had this discussion before.  Their comment was, the traffic signal down at 
224 and Cardinal Drive is on flashing.  It hasn’t been for a while.  I said, I’ll bring it up tonight, 
that’s as far as it’s going to go.   
 
CHIEF OF POLICE: Was there a time when we did it out of school? 
 
PUBLIC WORKS SUPERINTENDENT: We experimented with it, last year. We had a lot of 
complaints. Then we got away from it.   
 
MR. DRAGISH: I was asked about it too.  About it blinking after a certain time.  It was blinking.   
 
MR. TIECHE: Part of the discussion, when we were having it last year, had to do with, it’s 
blinking now, it’s going to change and how many people will run the red light when it changes.  
You get used to it being either a traffic signal or you get used to it being a blinker.  You have 
potential problems.  I said I’d bring it up anyway.   
 
CHIEF OF POLICE: If council has an opinion, I’ll take it. Otherwise, I can speak with the staff at 
the police department.   
 
MR. NEFF: Who controls that? 
 
PUBLIC WORKS SUPERINTENDENT: We control it.  
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MR. TIECHE: We do. Right on the corner.   
 
MR. NEFF: We did do it last year. When school started we went back.  I think it’s a good idea.  It 
must be the same person talked to me and they said that … 
 
MR. TIECHE: It is.  
 
MR. NEFF: There is a slow grade from there, so trucks that stop, then have to go through the 
whole gear range to get back up. It creates…..It doesn’t bother you, Christine? 
 
FINANCE DIRECTOR: No.  
 
PUBLIC WORKS SUPERINTENDENT: Adapting to the change could cause an accident if you’re 
used to viewing one thing and you’re changing it to another.  You’ll do whatever you want us to 
do.   
 
MR. DRAGISH: My understanding was, it wasn’t just blinking through the whole day. I think the 
light was there during the day but at night, it would go to blinking.  After a certain time and 
there really isn’t a lot of traffic anyway.   
 
FINANCE DIRECTOR: After 9:00 there is rarely a semi that comes through there.   
 
MR. DRAGISH: In my opinion, to see it go to a blinker at 9:00 would be nice, just because it 
saves on somebody just standing there.  I’ve had several people come to me and say, wasn’t it 
supposed to be blinking, we came through here and we just sit here. They don’t want to run a 
red light, obviously. But they’re like we’re just sitting here and there is nobody around.   
 
MR. NEFF: How do we control the one on Cardinal Drive and Railroad Street?  Is that the same 
thing? 
 
PUBLIC WORKS SUPERINTENDENT: That one is a little more complicated. We have to bring in 
Pathmasters.   
 
CHIEF OF POLICE: It’s on the 224 loop.  We have access to it. We have to bring them in. ODOT 
will never let us, just change it without going through them.  
 
MR. NEFF: But now that it’s blinking, does it blink all day long, or does it change at night?   
 
CHIEF OF POLICE: I think it was down for a period of time.  
 
PUBLIC WORKS SUPERINTENDENT:  It was just a day. We had to call Pathmasters in to make a 
repair.   
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MR. NEFF: But now that it’s blinking, does it blink all day long or does it change at night.   
 
MR. DRAGISH: I’m not talking about 224.  I think that should be a light all the time.  I’m just 
talking about, right over here.   
 
CHIEF OF POLICE: John, anything? 
 
MR. MORVAY: You have a better feel than anybody. 
 
MR. TIECHE:  I’ll give you a personal opinion.  Getting my motorhome in and out of my driveway 
is a lot better with a light.   
 
FINANCE DIRECTOR: I agree with that. For us, too.   
 
MR. TIECHE: That’s a selfish position but that’s my opinion, speaking as a citizen.   
 
MR. NACARATO: Don’t do it after 9:00pm.   
 
MR. MORVAY:  Okay.  Mr. Neff? 
 
MR. NEFF: We’ve covered anything I was going to bring up.  
 
MR. DRAGISH:  No, same kind of thing.  
 
MR. NACARATO:  I don’t have any communications but I would like to let the public know that 
Canfield Rotary is planning a ribbon cutting ceremony for the new gazebo. That is scheduled to 
start at 6:00 pm on July 17th, before the Monday musical starts on the Green.  We invite the 
general public to come out and join us for the ribbon cutting ceremony.  The Dairy Queen is 
providing us with Dilly Bars for the general public. There will be dessert for you. Come out and 
join us to celebrate the opening of the new gazebo.  Also, Canfield Rotary will be hosting a wine 
gala on August 13th, on the north end of the Green.  If you’re interested in tickets, contact 
either myself, John, or any Rotarian and they’ll be able to get tickets for you, for the Wine Gala. 
Supporting Canfield Rotary, supports a lot of the projects that we do within the community.  So, 
I encourage you to come out and support us on both of those events.   
 
MR. NEFF: That date again? 
 
MR. NACARATO: For the ribbon cutting or the wine gala? The wine gala is August 13th, it’s a 
Sunday.  Just as it was last year.  
 
MR. TIECHE: What’s the time on that? 
 
MR. NACARATO: I’m pretty sure it starts at 4:00pm.  I do know that the Dickey White Band will 
be playing that evening, for us.  
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MR. TIECHE: Rotary is running that?  
 
MR. NACARATO: Yes.  That’s all I have.   
 
MR. NEFF: John, can I add that on the ribbon cutting, that evening, the Mikey Dee Band is 
playing.  He’s very good. I introduced him last year and I get the privilege of introducing him this 
year.  That will be fun because it will be the second time that the audio is turned on, on the 
Green.   
 
MR. MORVAY: Cool.  Just a follow-up, Patty did you hear anything more about the permit? 
 
CLERK:  Nothing yet. I’ll follow-up and give them a call.  
 
MR. MORVAY: Okay.  The only thing I have for communications is, I just got this letter from the 
Mahoning Valley Amateur Radio Association. They will be at the barn at Mill Creek Metro Parks 
Farm on 46, the extension, they call it.  This is the American Radio Relay League Field Day.  They 
will be on the air, Saturday, June 24th at 2:00 pm until Sunday, June 25th at 2:00 pm.  More than 
35,000 Ham Operators throughout North America will be setting up temporary radio stations to 
demonstrate, science, skill and service to our communities.  They have Press Releases out, if 
anybody is interested.  I have them here and I can share it with you.  It would be pretty 
interesting to go out and see what they do and how they communicate. The only other thing 
that I was going to talk about is our council meetings for next month but I’m going to let Patty 
do that at her time. That’s all I have. Chief, do you have any communications? 
 
CHIEF OF POLICE:  We’re a little late on a few of our events this year, certainly we’re late 
posting them but there was never a thought not to do the events. We knew we would get to 
them. We’re obviously in a transition, without a city manager. Our employee that used to 
coordinate a lot of the events, retired.  We got it done. Our new employee is going to be 
coming soon, a receptionist.  Chris might be talking about her.  Part of the attraction with her, 
the intent interest in getting her in here as soon as possible is her ability to manage these type 
of events. She has a really strong grip on managing websites. We’re really excited to get her in 
here. She could ultimately, this was, I don’t want to quote Chris but an idea Chris had, she could 
turn it into a new job, a city position, scheduling all of the events that the city hosts and 
possibly managing our website. She’s got the ability to manage the website.  
 
FINANCE DIRECTOR: Social Media.  
 
CHIEF OF POLICE: Social Media.  Our current group has managed to make time to get everything 
scheduled and we’re excited to announce the following events that are sponsored by both the 
police department and the city.  Certainly, always, assistance to us is the street department, 
making it happen, getting us the barricades to close the roads, setting up Christmas trees and 
stuff like that.  So, Sunday, July 23rd, we already have these posted, and we’ll post them again.  
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Sunday, July 23, 2023 from 3:00pm to 6:00pm-Christmas in July at the square. We always work 
together with Akron Children’s Hospital, its our one major event of operation throughout the 
year. We get gifts donated and we give everything to Akron Children’s Hospital for those kids 
that are in the hospital and surgery and try to bring a smile to their face.   
 
Saturday, August 12, 2023 from 4:00pm to 8:00pm- Canfield Police Safety Day which is a 
community favorite. We’ve had a lot of requests about when it is, where is it, why haven’t we 
done it yet.  We usually do it earlier but we’re going to get it in, in August. 
 
Thursday, August 24, 2023 from 6:00pm to 9:00pm-Movie Night at Fair Park.   
 
Saturday, September 9, 2023 from 4:00pm to 8:00pm-Fall Festival.   
 
Thursday, September 21, 2023 from 6:00pm-9:00pm- Family Fun Night.  With that will come 
bouncy houses and food trucks, music.  Certainly, we’ll work together. Maybe Bruce can help us 
out with these events to get music in the gazebo.  I’m looking forward to that.   
 
Do we have a date on the Christmas Tree Lighting?   
 
MR. NACARATO: That would be the first Friday in December; which is the 1st at 6:00pm. 
 
CHIEF OF POLICE: Did you check with the Ohio High School Athletic Association to see when 
Division III… 
 
MR. NACARATO: I’m sure it will be that weekend. But we always end up doing it that first Friday 
in December.   
 
CHIEF OF POLICE: I will make sure that gets posted with these other events.  We’re excited to 
be able to do these events.  I know the community likes it because there are a lot of questions 
about where they are. 
 
  Going back to the last meeting, we talked about the fence at Greasel Park.  That fence has 
since been ordered.   It on its way. There is like a 4 to 6 lead time.  Patty informed me that, after 
out last meeting, Nancy Brundage who was typically always here and now watching at home, 
she advised that, that fence is at least 38 years old. When she moved in, it was there and she’s 
been there 38 years. So, we got our money’s worth out of that fence.  That was cool that Nancy 
called and informed us of that. Thank you, Nancy.   
 
The gazebo is coming along great.  Thanks to everyone on Council and Rotary for staying on top 
of it.  I get calls a lot. These guys care, so much, they’re calling constantly and making sure that 
the straw is down or we got hydroseed all over the gazebo and couldn’t get it off. John was 
scrubbing it off with a toothbrush.  It was everywhere but we got it off and we got it painted.  It 
looks really good. The Green is starting to come together.  We will do some landscaping, mulch, 
we’ll get it done for the 4th of July. Bruce is working on the audio system.  
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The city manager search.  I spoke with Patty from Baker Tilly. They are still actively recruiting. 
That process is not going to stop.  We’ll be on it until we find the right person. I’ll give updates 
when I can.   
 
John is coordinating the sealing of the city and police department lot.  
 
PUBLIC WORKS SUPERINTENDENT: They’re going to begin between 6:30 and 7:00am on 
Sunday, with just the crack sealing.  I already notified the fire department and I talked to your 
guys. I don’t have a date yet, on the seal.  That’s going to be a 24-hour dry time. That’s going to 
be a little bit more involved with coordination between the fire department and your guys.   
 
CHIEF OF POLICE: We’ll probably work with the school on using their parking lot.  We got new 
cameras out in front of the city building, so we can monitor our property out there, fire trucks 
and such.  We’ll figure that all out. I appreciate council approving that in this year’s budget.  The 
pavement is not that old and if we stay on top of it, sealing it and keeping those cracks down to 
a minimum, not allowing water to get under there and heat it and separate it.  Thanks for doing 
that.   
 
I spoke with the property owner at S. Hillside and E. Main Street, where the house burned 
down.  I’ll have more information for council but they hope for that facility to be up and 
running next year, next summer/fall.  I’ll get more in-depth with council as things proceed. 
That’s their tentative plan, for it to be under roof and up and running next year, 2024.  That’s it.  
 
MR. DRAGISH: It kind of reminded me of something that I talked to the chief about.  I had a 
group of people from the Canfield Schools, specifically the sports events, they would like to put 
Canfield Cardinal heads, saying Cardinal Country, going into the direction from Brookpark down 
each intersection down going towards the school and from 224 coming down.  I didn’t know if 
that was possible to do.  They would cover the cost of it.  We would just have to figure out what 
we would have to do on our end, as far as permits.   
 
CHIEF OF POLICE: Is it seasonal?   
 
MR. DRAGISH: It would be permanent.   
 
CHIEF OF POLICE:  I guess we need to see it. Get a proposal.   
 
MR. MORVAY: Where would they put them?   
 
MR. DRAGISH: No, on the street. It would be painted, like a white cardinal head and outlined…… 
 
MR. TIECHE: On the asphalt surface? 
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MR. DRAGISH: On the asphalt surface on each street. So, you’d have Glenview, Northview, 
Southview, then Overbrook and each of those intersections will have the Cardinal going down 
towards the school.  Then one right in front of the school.   
 
CHIEF OF POLICE: A lot of communities do it as you’re approaching the school, for a sporting 
event or whatever it may be, letting you know that you’re getting close.  
 
MR. DRAGISH: The people that I spoke to said, we’ll cover the cost, we just want to make sure 
that we have the ability to be able to do it.  I wanted to run it by you guys.  I thought it was a 
cool idea, entering into Cardinal Country.   
 
MR. TIECHE: When you put those down, are they resistant to salt and snowplowing? 
 
MR. DRAGISH: Basically, what it would be, you know how they just got done doing the lines, the 
white lines? 
 
MR. TIECHE: Yes, it’s a painted surface.  
 
MR. DRAGISH: So, they would be able to stencil it and then put that in and be driven over. 
Obviously, it’s going to get eventually worn down.  
 
MR. TIECHE: Who is going to be doing this? 
 
MR. DRAGISH: There is a group of people. One of the gentlemen is from McHenry Industries.   
 
MR. TIECHE: I guess I’m more concerned that the paint that they’re going to use is going to be 
something that is going to stand-up.  We’re not going to get it down one week and get a snow 
storm and it’s peeled off.   
 
MR. DRAGISH:  Sure.   
 
MR. TIECHE:  Okay.   
 
CHIEF OF POLICE: It would probably have to be maintained.   
 
MR. NEFF: They look really good when they’re put in. After they’re there for a few years. My 
neighbor is the Principal at the middle school and he had a huge Cardinal head in his driveway.   
 
MR. DRAGISH: They do them in the driveways. Those are color. This one would be like the white 
strips for the road.  Again, the details, I’m not really sure. But I’m sure we can get the proper 
paint.  They would cover the costs. 
 
CHIEF OF POLICE:  I like that better than what other communities have, like signs of cardboard 
or sheets of plywood.  I like this better.   
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MR. DRAGISH: It looks like of cool.  It looks like they paint it on the highway.  When you see I-80 
this way, 680 this way.  That lasts for a good period of time.  
 
MR. NEFF: On a related subject, when you do a report, is there anything new on the entrance 
ways?  Remember we talked about that last year.  
 
CHIEF OF POLICE: Into the city?  
 
MR. NEFF: Yes.  
 
CHIEF OF POLICE: The signs? 
 
MR. NEFF: Welcome to Canfield and all the different clubs and so forth.  
 
CHIEF OF POLICE: Yeah, so, I just recently had a request to put up a sign.  But, as far as a 
greeting sign, I want nothing more than to have new signs coming into the city.  It’s obviously 
going to be an expense and a budget item.  I’ve wanted that for a long time.  To me, it’s the 
image of the community. Coming in, it’s like new and clean.  Like the weeds coming into the 
city, get them out of there.  
 
MR. NACARATO: Going backwards, when Wade was here, and we started the sign project.  The 
concept was, we were going to mimic those signs, for the new “Welcome” signs. John Orsini did 
the drawings for them. That’s what the idea was, to mimic those signs and do away with all the 
clubs and all those other signs around it.  
 
MR. DRAGISH:  Utilize the brick, so all the brick matches.   
 
MR. NACARATO: Yes, so it would be basically that same design for the “Welcome” signs, also.   
 
CHIEF OF POLICE: I’ll start working on that.  It’s not a budgeted item for this year.  We can 
certainly look at it for next year and work on it.  It’s something that needs to be done.  
 
MR. TIECHE:  You’re talking about eliminating the church signs, Rotary Signs, Lions Club Signs? 
 
MR. NACARATO: That’s what Wade and I was discussing, to eliminate all of those extra signs 
and just have the welcome signs.   
 
CHIEF OF POLICE: Wasn’t it also, have the “Welcome” sign separate from that but still have a 
rendition of all the Rotary, churches, etc.  
 
MR. NACARATO: From what I remember, we were going to do away with all of those.  Any of 
the sports signs, the idea was to put those down by the school.  That’s what I recall.  
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MR. TIECHE:  I would like to suggest that we reopen that and discuss that again, so everybody is 
on the same page.   
 
MR. DRAGISH: I think what it was originally, because we would be taking those down, again, 
this was awhile ago but I thought we said something like, it would have a specific address or 
web address, whatever it may be, that would list all the different clubs and whatever.  If 
somebody wanted to go to it, it would be under that particular web address. 
 
CHIEF OF POLICE: John and Christine just mentioned that possibly a central location. Take them 
down at the entrance point but have them in a central location, in the square or something. 
But, again, I agree with Chuck, make sure we’re all on the same page before we get carried 
away.  There was a solution that we had that he wasn’t that interested in but I’ll look into it.  
We’ll get the ball rolling for next year.   
 
MR. NEFF: If you can find the rendition that John Orsini did… 
 
MR. NACARATO: Yes, I’ll ask John.  
 
CHIEF OF POLICE: I have it too.  
 
MR. NACARATO: I know John would have it.  I can email him.   
 
CHIEF OF POLICE: We’ll forward it to you. I’ve always been interested in that topic.  It’s money 
but we can find a way to get it done.   
 
MR. NACARATO: I know the effort that goes into those signs now.   
 
CHIEF OF POLICE: When we’re done it won’t be right.   
 
MR. NACARATO: I will not throw anymore brick when I’m supposed to be having heart surgery 
later that week.  I won’t do that.   
 
MR. NEFF: The signs that we put up on the Green that announce the council meetings are the 
first and the third Wednesdays; are we going to put up a sign for July and August?   
 
CHIEF OF POLICE: I thought about that.  I don’t know if we take them down.  
 
MR. NEFF: They’re expensive.  
 
MR. NACARATO: From what I understand, we’re going to have 4 signs in for the 4th of July, for 
the fireworks and the ………… 
 
CHIEF OF POLICE:  Yes, Enid… 
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MR. NACARATO: Eight signs actually, 4 on each board.  I would say, after that, for the July & 
August meetings, we put the cardinal head in instead.   
 
MR. DRAGISH: It makes sense.   
 
CHIEF OF POLICE: It’s a good point because we won’t be here.  
 
  Under REPORTS of Committees, Boards, Mayor’s Report, City Manager, Finance 
Director, Chief of Police, Zoning Inspector and Public Works Superintendent.  
 
 
MR. TIECHE:  I have no report this evening.  
 
MR. NEFF:  I better defer to our crack zoning inspector.  We did have a zoning meeting. So, I’m 
going to defer to Mike and he can cover that in his report. Is that okay? 
 
ZONING INSPECTOR: I got it.   
 
MR. NEFF: Thank you.  
 
MR. MORVAY: Mayor Dragish. 
 
MR. DRAGISH: I have the Mayor’s Monthly Statement to Council from Mayor’s Court.  After the 
money coming in and money paid back out, net collections to the city was $992.01.   
 
MR. MORVAY: I have to ask you, Mayor, the JEDD for the nursing home. You guys did not have 
the meeting?   
 
MR. DRAGISH: We did not.   
 
MR. MORVAY: Marie was asking me about it.   
 
MR. DRAGISH: I talked to her. 
 
MR. MORVAY: Okay.  Mr. Nacarato. 
 
MR. NACARATO: Design Review has not met since our last meeting, so I have no report.  
 
MR. MORVAY:  The Fire District, which I sit on, I wasn’t here the last meeting, so this is for May. 
We had a total of 203 calls.  Of those 203 calls, we had 102 transports, with the ambulance.  We 
had one house fire, June 1st, about $100,000 worth of damage.  Other than that, we’re running 
pretty well.  If you haven’t had a chance to stop and visit our Fire Stations and see the 
equipment and training that our guys go through, I’d encourage you to do so.  With that, I’ll 
move over to our Public Works Superintendent, John Rapp. 
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PUBLIC WORKS SUPERINTENDENT:  Good evening. Crews are out doing asphalt repair, potholes. 
We had a couple of breaks that we had to repair some asphalt.  We’re getting everything ready 
for the 4th of July, trying to pull some items out that the 4th of July Board is asking for.  We had a 
water break on Lisbon Street, a valve repair at Lisbon and Edwards within the past couple of 
weeks. Also, crews are repairing some inflow and infiltration on sanitary. We had smoke testing 
done, and we’re going around trying to remedy those inflows.  Also, meter replacements, we’re 
staying steady on those. We just got a new shipment in today, so we’re back in action.  That’s it.  
 
MR. MORVAY: We’re going to hear from our Finance Director, Christine Clayton.  
 
FINANCE DIRECTOR: We have Brittany Simboli starting on Wednesday, July 5th as receptionist.  
We’re real excited to get her. She has lots of great ideas for events, including the Library.  
Tomorrow, I’ll have the April check register posted to the website.  We completed our first data 
pool for the new accounting software. We had to transfer to them a copy of our data base. I 
had to run a lot of different reports, so they can verify that they got the information correctly. 
They’re starting on all kinds of set-up on that side.  Hopefully, January 1st, we’ll be in the new 
software.  
 
MR. MORVAY:  Our Zoning Inspector, Mike Cook.   
 
ZONING INSPECTOR:  For the month of June, so far, we’ve issued 12 permits for a total 
valuation of $140,984.00.  At our Planning & Zoning meeting we had discussion on a cell tower 
ordinance.  Steve Kristan is going to give a model ordinance to Mark, so we can move forward 
with that.  We set a public hearing for the township, they’re applying for a changeable copy 
sign, in the historic district; which it’s not permitted. So, they need an adjustment. They did not 
send a recommendation to council for the Board of Appeals change.  That’s on the agenda for 
next month, a public hearing.  IES is working on their storm water at this time.   Their retention 
pond is almost finished. They’ll be moving on to the building after that.  Canfield Nutrition, they 
just changed owners. They changed it to Vault.  Not the owner’s but somebody else was 
running it other than Sebastiani-Folsom. Steve Cocca, I had a conversation with him this week 
about cutting the grass on North Broad. He did a nice job cutting that. Steve Delucia sent me 
drawings yesterday for the first Villa. They’ll be building that on south side, on the first lot, it’s 
2.800 square feet.  I did talk to Ed Reese about his property on North Broad yesterday, he called 
me back today and they’re going to come out and brush-hog.  They’re having a landscaper pick 
everything up there and start cutting it on a regular basis.  They’ll be planning on demolishing 
the house at a later point in time.  At this time, there are no firm plans to go ahead with the 
development.  He’s still moving forward with that.  I think that’s all I got.   
 
MR. MORVAY: Our city clerk, Patty Bernat. 
 
CLERK:  I just wanted to give the dates for the July & August meeting for council.  That will be 
July 12th and August 9th. 
 



12 
 

MR. MORVAY: Our City Manager/Chief of Police. 
 
CHIEF OF POLICE:  We’ll make sure those dates get posted.   
 
CLERK: I posted them, Chuck. 
 
CHIEF OF POLICE: Patty already has them posted. There is something that I wanted to comment 
on, on Mike’s report, maybe it will come back to me.  From a police perspective, the police 
department is all in with working together with the city on the events that I talked about on the 
Green.   
 
We just purchased a new speed trailer. It was on Sleepy Hollow for a week. It’s a better system. 
It gives us better data.  It’s on the same network/cloud as the speed signs that we got right 
now.  It’s pretty informative.  It’s a bigger sign, it flashes your speed and safe speed.  We have 
our officers or residents know when the digital speed signs are not working properly.  One of 
them was down on Glenview.  We got a new one over there and they’re repairing that one. We 
do get a lot of positive feedback from people in the neighborhoods where those speed signs 
are.  It seems to be helping. I know speed is a continuing and ongoing problem.   
 
I did mention we were hiring new police officers.  This week, we had two new police officers 
start. Ellie Davidson- she was a graduate of Salem High School, she was a standout athlete. She 
also has her bachelor’s degree from YSU and she completed the police academy.  Alyssa Fillion-
We found her that YSU Police Academy. She graduated from Edgewood High School in 
Ashtabula. She has her bachelor’s degree from YSU, also.  The two girls started Monday.  Next 
Monday, Timmie Bately (it’s not Timothy, it’s Timmie) he starts Monday.  Tim is a 5-year 
veteran of Dayton Police Department.  We spoke about last time about the change that we had 
for mid-term bargaining, regarding external candidates. Tim is actually from the area. He 
moved to Dayton. His family went to Florida for military deployment, now he’s coming back. 
He’s in the National Guard. He’s a really stand-up guy. The goal for me, at some point, is for me 
to get these people in here to City Council and introduce them to you.  We’ll get information 
out to the public. I constantly hear, I don’t recognize any of the cops anymore.  I actually hear 
that from some of you guys.  We just added 3 new ones.  This will bring us back up to the staff 
that we’re comfortable with. We were running low for a while.   Again, all in the spirit of making 
sure we have the right match for this community.  I think Ellie, Alyssa and Timmie meet that.  
Good backgrounds.  I think they’re going to represent our community just fine.  We also hired 
two part-time dispatchers, Craig Briker (spelled phonetically) and Samantha Colonna-Noble. 
Craig is retired, he worked at the Elkton Federal Prison. He is a retired prison guard. He was a 
Lieutenant there.  He’s a solid character guy. He lives in Columbiana.  Samantha Colonna-Noble, 
is a part-time dispatcher for the Beaver Police Department. She wants to be a full-time 
dispatcher.  She has already started. Craig has been there for a little while.  As Chris mentioned, 
Brittany, we were busy doing background checks.  I want to give everybody credit for working 
together and getting these done.  It’s a lot of people for a small community to hire all at once.  
Brittany came to the interview with this portfolio of her accomplishments; which include events 
that she has coordinated. She worked for the Library in Stark. She is going to be missed there.  
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She’s excited to come back here. She lives in Canfield Township.  She had this portfolio of her 
accomplishments and her work and how she is able to get the Library and the community to 
work together, in connection with juveniles and kids in the community.  What’s exciting about 
her is, she is going to renew our sense of culture in this community.  I think she’s going to bring 
it out.  There is a certain culture in this community that everybody appreciates, I think she’s 
going to fit in well and she’s going to help it shine.  That’s where Chris was going about creating 
a new position for the city if she does what she advertises she can do.  We’re excited to bring 
her on.  I’d like to bring these people to council. The Mayor is going to swear them in next 
week.  
 
MR. DRAGISH: End of the month.  
 
CHIEF COLUCCI: End of June.  Right now, the girls they’re not in uniform, they’re working 
dispatch and they’re riding. They started Monday and we’ve been really busy.  What they’ve 
been exposed to already. They started on an interesting note. I don’t know, watch the news.   
 
MR. DRAGISH: Is it going to be on the news? 
 
CHIEF COLUCCI: Maybe.  None of our people did anything wrong or anyone from our 
community did anything wrong. It’s just what somebody did passing through.  If you really want 
to know, press me.  I might talk about it.   
 
From a City Manager perspective, everything is going really well. The Collective Bargaining 
Agreement, you guys approved for the street department, they’re getting ready to sign it. It’s 
just a matter of getting them all together in the same room to sign the contract.  Again, they 
were all very pleased and appreciative. They wanted me to pass that along to council’s 
acknowledgement of their hard work and efforts.  John was a key part of making that work. 
He’s a tremendous leader for that group.  I think they got to see it in these negotiations.  He 
cares about them. He wants the best out of them.  Knowing their positive morale is going to 
make the city a better place.   
 
As you guys know, I informed you last week, they started farming at Red Gate. Was it two 
weeks ago?  
 
MR. MORVAY:  Yes.  
 
CHIEF COLUCCI:  Literally, that day we got the liability form signed, I told Bruce I was just at Red 
Gate and there is traffic rolling. They move. Mark is working on the lease agreement. Everything 
was very positive on that. It will bring the city a little bit of additional revenue.  I’ve had two 
calls from residents on Leffingwell that wanted to thank us for getting the property farmed, 
until we get to where we want to be with it.  They’d rather see farming being done and crops 
than noxious weeds.   
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MR. MORVAY: How is the structure out there, the house structure? Is that about ready to come 
down?  Is that a liability to us?   
 
CHIEF OF POLICE: Everything is pretty bad. I’ll put it in your memo this week but we sent an 
eviction notice to the last person that was staying in the house.  It probably should have been 
done awhile ago.  We made a decision to get it done.  The caretaker for the property, which 
prompted some of the complaints that we got, the agreement was they were going to cut the 
grass and keep the fields mowed down but one of the tenants out there is now in the hospital 
and probably not getting out. They weren’t able to keep up with the property.  In the spirit of 
protecting ourselves, we’re getting them out of there.  We’ll have it looked at and we’ll keep a 
close eye on it.  The neighbors are happy that it’s being farmed.   
 
MR. MORVAY: Could that be a training facility for the Fire District? 
 
CHIEF OF POLICE: Very possible.  It’s been awhile since they did controlled burns. Those 
structures are not going to exist in the future out there.  Why not?  
 
MR. MORVAY: I’ll say something to the Chief, if you like. 
 
CHIEF OF POLICE: Yes, for sure.  
 
MR. MORVAY: You guys can have that conversation. 
 
MR. TIECHE: There was only one structure out there rented, right? 
 
CHIEF OF POLICE:  Yes.  
 
MR. TIECHE: That’s the one first, to the east? 
 
CHIEF OF POLICE: Yes.  
 
MR. TIECHE: Who did we end up leasing it to, as far as farming? 
 
CHIEF OF POLICE: Terri Pidgeon. Terri was farming the property to the north of Maplevale, so 
his gear was all out there.  It just made perfect sense.  That’s probably why an hour later 
tractors were rolling.   
 
The school resource officer and school security officers, the school had expressed interest in 
putting two police officers in the elementary schools.  I certainly want two police officers in the 
elementary schools.  I just need time to make sure that we’re able to staff that. I’ve been 
working on it for awhile and I spoke with the school and the township about our existing 
agreement where the township pays for part of one of the officers. The township has agreed to 
pay their part that they always fund.  It’s a flat rate. I’m waiting to hear back from the schools 
now on where they stand.  I’m not trying to put pressure on that group. They have a lot going 
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on with school safety and school security, is an issue.  Those schools are in our jurisdiction and 
they’re our responsibility.  Keeping them safe is our number one goal.  I certainly want to put 
police officers in those schools.  I’ll keep you updated.  It’s kind of like on a standstill right now.  
I think we’re going to extend our current contract with the existing police officers, as far as 
adding two new one’s to the school.  Again, we want to do it. Our officers want to do it.  I know 
your number one goal is keeping those kids safe.  I can’t imagine that parents wouldn’t want it 
that way.  I’m hearing from residents, it’s not a bad idea. If that’s the direction we want to go.  
It goes quiet until there is a school shooting somewhere.  Then it gets brought up again.  It gets 
hot and then it cools off.  We’re a proactive community. We’re a proactive police department 
and I don’t want it to cool off.  I want police in those schools.  
 
MR. TIECHE: How many school resource officers do we have? 
 
CHIEF OF POLICE: Currently, we have 2 inside the MCCTC, both are funded by MCCTC.  Canfield 
Middle School, we have a full-time police officer. Canfield High School, we have a full-time 
officer. The school funds 75% of one of the officers.  Canfield City and Canfield Township split 
75% of one of the other officers.  We pick up the rest. To Frank’s point, I’m not going to be shy 
about it, it’s to no fault of the school or anything, I think they need to have buy-in here and get 
officers in those schools.  
 
MR. TIECHE: If you’re talking about adding 2 officers, are we talking adding an additional officer 
to the high school and one additional officer to both Hilltop and C.H. Campbell?   
 
CHIEF OF POLICE: The high school and the middle school would remain the same; one officer in 
each school.  They want to label it a security officer, add an officer to each elementary school.  
A total of 4 for Canfield Local School District.  It’s their prerogative and I’m not trying to put 
heat on them by any means. Everybody’s goal is to keep the schools safe. I just don’t want it to 
cool off.  I think I made my point clear. I love working with the school board. I love working with 
the township. Everybody views it as equally important. If you poll the people in our community, 
both city and township, they’re going to want police officers in their schools.   
 
MR. TIECHE: MCCTC is paying for their own officers? 
 
CHIEF OF POLICE: Correct. Those guys are busy. That Vocational School (MCCTC) has almost 
double in population over the last decade.  They have a phenomenal curriculum. They have so 
much to offer out there. I don’t know if you saw the news but Lieutenant Governor was just up 
for the efforts they’re making and educating students on how to repair electrical vehicles.  Their 
population doubled and the activity doubled from a need for police standpoint. For sure, it 
looks like we’re going to renew our contract and keep status quo.  They brought up the 
conversation of adding two officers.   
 
MR. MORVAY: Chief, if you go to the Canfield Police Department website, you have all of your 
officers identified in there. 
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CHIEF OF POLICE: No.  The command staff is, the school resource officers are and the K-9’s.  I 
don’t believe we have anyone else.   
 
MR. MORVAY: The question came up a little bit earlier, with all the new officers, wouldn’t it be 
an advantage? 
 
CHIEF OF POLICE: I can’t even tell you why it ended up that way. There is no reason not to.  You 
try and protect police officers to a certain degree.   
 
MR. MORVAY: Think about that.  That would be a way to get to know our officers.   
 
CHIEF OF POLICE: We’ve had those talks for years. J.T. and I have worked on stories together 
over the years when we hire new officers.  I’ll take the blame for that lack of consistency.  We 
haven’t hired new officers in a while.  
 
MR. MORVAY: Our department is so good. I’ll be at the park with the grandchildren and I’ll 
bring them over purposely to introduce them to the police officer, so that they know, if there is 
trouble, here is where I go.  I’ve kind of talked to them about that.   
 
CHIEF OF POLICE: Now would be a good time to bring it up. We have a rule of thirds.  I don’t 
know if I’ve mentioned this before.  I’m not giving up any strategical operation that we do. We 
have a rule of thirds.  Officers are required to be on side streets a 1/3 of their time.  They’re 
required to be doing business checks 1/3 of the time and then regular patrol 1/3 of the time.  
We inspect that and make sure that they are.  I’ve always said our residents are more 
concerned about seeing cruisers driving down their street, knowing that we’re watching their 
property and making sure their kids are safe, than worried about reading about who we 
arrested from Akron or Pittsburgh.  Getting to meet people and families in the park, that’s what 
they’re expected to do. We’re going to continue to do it.  
 
MR. DRAGISH: I’ll interject and say, a lot of the newer police officers, I don’t believe he knew 
where I lived and my son was out playing basketball and he stopped and chatted with him for a 
while. Then I came out and he was kind of surprised because I didn’t think he knew where I 
lived.  It was really cool.  He didn’t even know and he stopped.  
 
CHIEF OF POLICE: And he was shooting hoops? 
 
MR. DRAGISH: Yes. 
 
CHIEF OF POLICE: That’s what it’s all about.  There is more to that job than handcuffs.  
Hopefully, we’re making that felt.   
 
MR. MORVAY: Council any questions for these reports that we’ve just heard?  Hearing none.  I’ll 
open it up to the residents.  
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MR. MICCHIA:  Good evening. Frank Micchia, 220 Glenview.  Just a couple of comments, in 
regards to the signs at the entrances to the city. Let me just give you my opinion.  I think a 
single sign, “Welcome to Canfield” real classy sign with gold leaf or something like that and light 
it at night would be perfect. All of these medallions and signs that we got there, there is no way 
you could read that coming into the city.  It’s overwhelming.  A nice simple sign. Let’s do that.   
 
Our resource officers, I’ll be the first guy to say that we need resource officers in the schools, 
grade schools and everything. At the rate that we’re going, we’re going to have some 6 
resource officers. We need the protection.  It’s better than having none.  But don’t forget, these 
resource officers are costing the city a lot of money.  I would estimate about $100,000 a year, 
comes out of our coffers to support the resource officers.  In my opinion, that’s a school 
responsibility.  I don’t know how we get there but the taxpayers are paying a lot of money for 
those resource officers; which covers the 25% of time that school is not in session.  We’re 
paying their salaries.  That’s something we got to look at and negotiate with the school system.  
We can use some financial help in that area. They can afford it.  I wonder if the Chief could 
elaborate a little bit on the project that is going in on Hillside and 224? I understand that it’s 
going to be some sort of a Mercy Health treatment. 
 
CHIEF OF POLICE: What we know at this point in time is the goal is a primary care physician.  
Urgent care was spoke of quite a bit but I’m under the understanding that the goal is a primary 
care, 4 or 5 doctors, surgeons.  That’s what I wanted to talk about. Canfield Nutrition, I hope 
they can stick around and make it until this gets there. They’re talking putting, they have to 
meet zoning and design review, but possibly some small retail shops, maybe dining. Something 
like that.  Hopefully, it will liven up that area a little bit. Give the people that in that district a 
little something more to offer.   
 
MR. MICCHIA: Would the primary care physicians be associated with Southwoods?   
 
CHIEF OF POLICE: I can’t answer that.   
 
MR. MICCHIA: Who is sponsoring this whole thing?  I had the impression that if it goes that way, 
it will be a Southwoods facility.   I hope it comes true.  
 
CHIEF OF POLICE: Well, Southwoods is everywhere. Bartels is now Southwoods.  I’d be 
speculating.   
 
MR. MICCHIA: Is there anyway we can find out?  Who is going to build it?  Who is funding it?  
 
CHIEF OF POLICE:  If you look it up on the Auditor’s, who owns the property?  
 
ZONING INSPECTOR: I don’t remember.   
 
MR. MICCHIA: It will be interesting to find out. Thank you.   
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CHIEF OF POLICE: Once I’m confident answering that question, I’ll get it to you.  I don’t want to 
speculate.   
 
MR. MORVAY: Anybody else that would like to address these reports?  Hearing none.  
 
  Under Recognition of Persons Desiring to Appear Before Council: 
 
MR. MICCHIA: Good evening, Frank Micchia, 220 Glenview.  American Legion Post 177, as you 
all know has constructed a Veterans Plaza. There is a flag there for each of the services. On the 
right there is a flag with POW/MIA, it’s a black flag.  Underneath that we have placed a red flag.  
If you take a look at it, it’s a KIA Flag (Killed in Action) and it’s to honor those service people 
who were killed in action.  
 
I’d like to talk a little bit about property maintenance.  All residents in general take real good 
care of their property.  It’s a clean city to live in.  There are those who, in my opinion, don’t take 
very good care of their property. There are garbage cans in front of garages, overflowing with 
garbage. We have debris scattered beside the houses and in front of the houses.  Why do we 
tolerate this type of thing?  I would like to see the city be more proactive in looking at property 
maintenance issues. It’s not the citizens responsibility to report these. It should be the city’s 
responsibility to identify these and take action. I don’t know if we need another ordinance or 
the ordinances we have are sufficient but I personally would like to see a little more action 
regarding property maintenance.  
 
Terms limits:  We all know my opinion on term limits. Sixteen years with you gentlemen on city 
council.  I have attended these meetings for over 10 years. 
 
MR. MORVAY: 12. 
 
MR. MICCHIA:  Thank you.  
 
MR. DRAGISH:  15, actually.  
 
MR. MICCHIA: But there are no term limits on me coming before you, as you may wish.  I’m 
considering not attending at some point.  I’ve identified that point.  That point is when the 
Cleveland Browns win the Super Bowl.   
 
MR. NACARATO: You’ll be here long after my term limits are up.  
 
MR. MORVAY: I have Joe and Darlene MacBenn.  
 
DARLENE MACBENN: Darlene MacBenn and my husband Joseph.  Our address that we live at is 
5097 Shields Road, Canfield Township, across the street from Argus Lodge.  We’re asking for 
water and sewer. Not on that property but on 7185 and 7195 Akron-Canfield Road.  This 
property is split between the frontage is in the township and the rear is in the city. In our last 
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meeting of June 7th, we would like to know the resolutions of issues from the last minutes. 
Unfortunately, Mark (Atty. Fortunato) is not here.  We would like a copy of his letter that he 
sent to Michael Hein our neighbor.  I assume it’s public information.  We went to his office in 
Poland and we gave him the certified letter that we sent to Michael Hein.  All I’m asking is, if we 
can have a copy of that letter.  Ours was dated on May 8th.  The second issue from the last 
minutes was the Health Department.  Ohio Administration Code 3701-29-06, on the sewage 
treatment system.  That’s the STS.  We have contacted several registered installers and we have 
some ready to crush and remove the current septic system, on 224 at 7185 and 7195 and also 
to cap the existing well, the well water, as directed by law.  The contractor said that he would 
consult with ODOT and get permits to bore under State Route 224 for the water from the city.   
Again, the sewage line is right in front our property, on the property. The water is across the 
street.  Without water and sewer, our land is not saleable and we cannot develop it.  It would 
be so nice to have Southwoods come in there.  That would be a wonderful thing.  You could 
make money on us. All we’re asking for is water and sewer.  From the last minutes again, I saw 
Mike Cook leave. I was going to ask him, he said he was going to do some work on how we got 
into this island situation on 224. I wanted him to explain to me or tell me if he did any research 
on it.  I don’t understand how we got into the island situation.  We owned the property for 40 
years.  All of a sudden we can’t get water and sewer.  Perhaps he could get back to me on that.  
Also, from the last minutes on June 7th, the first paragraph, Page 10, the last two lines, clarifying 
that we don’t want to hire an Attorney.  We do not want to have an Attorney. We would like to 
resolve this water situation with City Council, the Township, whoever.  I feel that it could be 
done mutually, instead of having litigation.  I wanted to address Atty. Fortunato and ask him if 
he can draw up a proposal and/or a document to resolve this situation without litigation. We 
appreciate your time and thank you.   
 
CHIEF OF POLICE: I don’t think litigation is going to be necessary.  Mike did do his research.  I 
called you this week and we talked and explained to you where we are at but everything that 
we said, we did.  Here’s where we’re at.  You’re going to need an Attorney. It’s going to take 
legal work to get this done.  Mark is willing to work together with your Attorney.  Litigation, I 
don’t think is necessary but I just told your husband, give your Attorney the heads-up and talk 
to him and Mark and he could discuss it.  Mark can’t be in a position where he’s representing 
the city and representing you, as well to try and get you water.  He’s going to need to work 
together with your counselor.  I don’t know that it would take litigation.  I don’t see that.  I 
think that there is going to have to be work done together from both of them and we’ll see if 
we can make it happen. It could be possible.  Start as simple as a phone call between the two.  
See if they can get somewhere, where it’s not going to take forever.  You indicated.  
 
DARLENE MACBENN: That’s exactly where I’m at.  I’ve waited all my life to do something with 
this property.  I’ve taught school, I did everything else.  All I want to do is develop it.  If it goes 
through litigation, it’s going to take years.   
 
MR. TIECHE: I have a question. You own 4 pieces of property on W. Main Street, correct? 
 
DARLENE MACBENN:  I think 3.  
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MR. TIECHE: Well, there are 3 that have frontage. There is a separate lot that runs behind the 3 
lots that have frontage on 224. 
 
DARLENE MACBENN: That’s correct.  
 
MR. TIECHE:  The separate lot that runs behind those properties, was included in the 
annexation petition for the Hunter’s Woods Development.  How did that occur without because 
you must have been the property owner at that time? 
 
DARLENE MACBENN: Yes.  
 
MR. TIECHE: I didn’t know how that would have occurred without your other 3 parcels being 
included in that.   
 
DARLENE MACBENN: We don’t understand either.  
 
MR. TIECHE: I think what Mark is asking you to do is have your Attorney submit a petition to the 
County Commissioners for the 3 parcels that actually have frontage on Canfield-Niles Road.  
That’s what he’s asking to have your Attorney do. That way, the submission is made to the 
county commissioners who can start the process for annexation to include that to get it into the 
city limits.   
 
CHIEF OF POLICE: Mark can’t do that. You’re going to need an Attorney to do that.   
 
MR. TIECHE: He can’t represent you and the city at the same time.  
 
CHIEF OF POLICE: You said it perfectly.   
 
MR. MORVAY: Mr. Tieche, in the inception, when we separated Township and City, do you have 
any recollection as to why that property was never considered part of the City?  They would 
have had to opt-out, right?   
 
MR. TIECHE: No. Apparently, the way the petition was presented was take in the area that is 
Hunter’s Woods and their annexation of that, if you look up here on this map, you can see a 
small purple portion, right here; which is the back of their property.  That was included in this 
annexation but the parcels out front were not.  The only thing that I can think of maybe, is if 
they would have all been included in there, they would have thought that you were going to 
extend the annexation to the center of the road and thereby create a donut hole because the 
property next door, immediately to their east, would not go to the center of the road. If they 
just extended the petition up to the southside of Canfield-Niles Road, they would have been 
included in and we wouldn’t be having this discussion.   
 
CHIEF OF POLICE: Hence, the petition getting filed could make it happen. 
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MR. TIECHE:  I don’t know whether we would have any kind of a copy the petition or the 
original work that came about when that was annexed or not. That’s been awhile ago.   
 
CLERK: What year was that Chuck? 
 
CHIEF OF POLICE: Were you the city manager?   
 
MR. TIECHE: Yes, I think I was.  That would be between 1991 and…… 
 
CLERK: I’ll look in petitions.  
 
DARLENE MACBENN: We owned it at that time.  
 
MR. TIECHE: I’m trying to think who the developer was. 
 
DARLENE MACBENN: Anderson.   
 
MR. TIECHE: Was it Anderson that did the Hunter’s Wood development? 
 
DARLENE MACBENN:  Anderson.   
 
MR. TIECHE: Okay.  
 
MR. TIECHE: We might be able to go back and look at the annexation and look for Anderson.  
 
CHIEF COLUCCI: I think that the city council wants you to get water and sewer. Have your 
Attorney contact our legal counsel, Mark.  They can formulate a game plan.  If acceptable you 
can move forward with it.  If you don’t like your Attorney, maybe there is another one you can 
use.  Your reluctant to using an Attorney is going to hold you up.   
 
MRS. MACBENN: Thank you.  
 
MR. MORVAY: I don’t have anybody else on the list. If somebody would like to speak.  Hearing 
none. 
 
 
  Under OLD BUSINESS, there was none.  
 
MR. NEFF: John, I’d like to backtrack and make a confession that I should have brought up. We 
had a Millennial Moments JEDD Meeting and I did not report on that when it was my turn to do 
reports.  Actually, the developer had a problem attending and we didn’t know that, so not too 
much happened.  This is the Millennial Moment Development that is happening in the JEDD.  
There was nobody representing the developer, except the President of the JEDD.  We had 
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residents that lived on Palmyra Road, I’m sorry, they don’t live on Palmyra Road, they have a lot 
on Palmyra Road, so there was a lot of discussion about them getting sewer and water because 
it’s running on the opposite side, on the west side of Palmyra and their lot is on the north side 
of Palmyra.  The last lot that touches the Millennial Moments Development.   
 
MR. TIECHE: North side of Palmyra. It’s got to be east or west.   
 
MR. NEFF: I’m sorry, the east side.   
 
MR. TIECHE: East side of Palmyra, south of 224.   
 
MR. NEFF: Right.  
 
MR. TIECHE: How far south? Do you have an idea how many lots?   
 
MR. NEFF: There are several lots there but they own the last one that touches before Dr. 
Awad’s property.   
 
MR. TIECHE: That would be adjacent to the private drive coming out of Hunters Woods.  Is that 
right?  
  
CHIEF COLUCCI: Right.  
 
MR. TIECHE: Which would be Robert and Roxanne Willison.  The question was, can they have 
water and sewer. I don’t think they can but I’d like to see the Millennial Moments agreement.   
 
MR. MORVAY: I thought that vacant lots were (inaudible), if a house existed there and they 
needed, their septic system would defunct, we would supply sewer and water but on vacant 
lots, not so.  That’s the way I recollected it. 
 
MR. TIECHE: Again, I would like to see the agreement because they would have access, do they 
or don’t they have to annex, 1.  2. Do they or don’t they have to pay the extra territorial fees if 
they don’t annex.   
 
MR. NEFF: I would certainly think they would have to pay the extra territorial fees.   
 
PUBLIC WORKS SUPERINTENDENT: There wouldn’t be any sanitary available because there is no 
sanitary that runs down Palmyra.  Only on the west side of the road, currently is the waterline. 
So, the sanitary have to be put in.  
 
MR. TIECHE: The sanitary sewer in those developments is going to run in the backyards of the 
properties that would face on Palmyra, as I recall.  That’s my recollection. If I’m truthful, the 
reason for doing that is they wanted to preclude those people from tying in.  We’ll look at the 
agreement.   
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  Under NEW BUSINESS: 
 
ITEM A:  An Ordinance Restating Canfield Codified Ordinance the Boundaries of the Designated 
“Community Reinvestment Area(s)” of the City.  
 
MR. MORVAY: As per the provisions of Section 4.05 of the Charter of the City of Canfield, I 
move that Council dispense with the requirement of two readings of the proposed Ordinance 
and authorize adoption of the same upon it first reading.  
 
MR. TIECHE: Second.  
 
   ROLL CALL ON MOTION:   5 Votes-Yes   
         0 Votes-No   
         Motion passes. 
 
MR. MORVAY: As per the provisions of Section 4.05 of the Charter of the City of Canfield, I 
move that Council dispense with the requirement of a full reading of the proposed Ordinance 
and authorize reading by title only.   
 
MR. DRAGISH: Second. 
 
   ROLL CALL ON MOTION:   5 Votes-Yes   
         0 Votes-No   
         Motion passes.  
 
MR. TIECHE:  Mr. President, I have an Ordinance Restating Canfield Codified Ordinance the 
Boundaries of the Designated “Community Reinvestment Area(s)” of the City.  I move for 
passage.   
 
MR. NEFF: Second.  
 
MR. MORVAY:  Chief could you brief us real quick.  
 
CHIEF COLUCCI: I’m going to defer to Patty.  She’s done all the work.   
 
CLERK:  Council passed an Ordinance on March 1, 2023 for a 10-year, 100% abatement for 485 
W. Main Street.  This was our first agreement with the property owner and the school board.  
When that was sent in to the Ohio Department of Development it was discovered that we 
didn’t have a CRA number.  At that time, we determined that the proper paperwork must not 
have been filed.  The Ohio Department of Development asked that we restate the same 
Ordinances that we previously passed and then they’ll issue us a CRA number.  That’s what you 
have in front of you tonight on both A & B.   
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MR. MORVAY: Thank you. Council questions?  Hearing none.  Residents questions? Hearing 
none.  
 
   ROLL CALL ON ORDINANCE:     5 Votes-Yes  
          0 Votes-No  
          Ordinance passes 
          Ordinance 2023-21. 
 
ITEM B: An Ordinance Restating Canfield Codified Ordinance 2020-55 to establish and designate 
tax exemptions for improvements to real property with the designated “Community 
Reinvestment Area(s)” of the city.   
 
MR. MORVAY: As per the provisions of Section 4.05 of the Charter of the City of Canfield, I 
move that Council dispense with the requirement of two readings of the proposed Ordinance 
and authorize adoption of the same upon it first reading.  
 
MR. NACARATO: Second.  
 
   ROLL CALL ON MOTION:    5 Votes-Yes  
          0 Votes-No  
          Motion passes. 
 
MR. MORVAY: As per the provisions of Section 4.05 of the Charter of the City of Canfield, I 
move that Council dispense with the requirement of a full reading of the proposed Ordinance 
and authorize reading by title only.   
 
MR. DRAGISH: Second.  
 
   ROLL CALL ON MOTION:    5 Votes-Yes  
          0 Votes-No  
          Motion passes.  
 
MR. NEFF: Mr. President, I have an Ordinance Restating Canfield Codified Ordinance 2020-55 to 
establish and designate tax exemptions for improvements to real property within the 
designated “Community Reinvestment Area(s)” of the City. We move for passage.   
 
MR. DRAGISH: Second.  
 
CLERK: Same explanation.   
 
MR. MORVAY: Council questions or concerns?  Hearing none.  Residents, questions or 
concerns?  Hearing none.  
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   ROLL CALL ON ORDINANCE:    5 Votes-Yes  
          0 Votes-No  
          Ordinance passes. 
          Ordinance 2023-22. 
 
ITEM C:  An Ordinance Authorizing the City Manager to Enter Into A Contract for the Indian 
Lake Water Main Replacement and Declaring said Ordinance an Emergency.  
 
MR. MORVAY: As per the provisions of Section 4.05 of the Charter of the City of Canfield, I 
move that Council dispense with the requirement of two readings of the proposed Ordinance 
and authorize adoption of the same upon it first reading.  
 
MR. NACARATO: Second.  
 
   ROLL CALL ON MOTION:    5 Votes-Yes  
          0 Votes-No  
          Motion passes. 
 
MR. MORVAY: As per the provisions of Section 4.05 of the Charter of the City of Canfield, I 
move that Council dispense with the requirement of a full reading of the proposed Ordinance 
and authorize reading by title only.   
 
MR. DRAGISH: Second.  
 
   ROLL CALL ON MOTION:    5 Votes-Yes  
          0 Votes-No  
          Motion passes. 
 
MR. DRAGISH:  Mr. President, I have an Ordinance Authorizing the City Manager to Enter Into A 
Contract for the Indian Lake Water Main Replacement and Declaring said Ordinance an 
Emergency.  I move for passage.  
 
MR. TIECHE: Second.  
 
MR. MORVAY: Chief can you brief us. 
 
CHIEF OF POLICE:  The City of Canfield intends to replace the water lines located on Indian Lake. 
The engineer on the project is MS Consultants.  They performed the engineering, design and 
bidding of this project and will perform construction, administration and inspection services for 
the project as well.  
 
MR. TIECHE: What’s the size of this waterline, 6 or 8? 
 
CHIEF OF POLICE:  8. 
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PUBLIC WORKS SUPERINTENDENT:  6 INCH.  
 
CHIEF OF POLICE: Thank you, John.  
 
MR. TIECHE: Plastic? 
 
PUBLIC WORKS SUPERINTENDENT: Plastic will be going in. Currently, it’s a mix of cast iron. 
 
MR. MORVAY: Council any other questions? Hearing none. Residents, questions?  
 
MR. MICCHIA:  Frank Micchia, 220 Glenview. The cost of this project is $320,300.00, where is 
that funding coming from?   
 
FINANCE DIRECTOR: The waterline improvement fund.   
 
MR. MICCHIA: That’s money we already have? 
 
FINANCE DIRECTOR: Correct.  
 
MR. MICCHIA: Okay, thank you.  
 
MR. TIECHE: We’re going to include the change-over to put existing service providers on the 
new line and make the taps and that kind of thing, as part of the project.   
 
PUBLIC WORKS SUPERINTENDENT: It’s all included.   
 
   ROLL CALL ON ORDINANCE:    5 Votes-Yes  
          0 Votes-No  
          Ordinance passes 
          Ordinance 2023-23. 
 
ITEM D:  An Ordinance Amending Ordinance 2023-08 Adopting Salary and Benefits for all Full 
and Part Time Non-Bargaining Unit Employees and Declaring an Emergency.  
 
MR. MORVAY: As per the provisions of Section 4.05 of the Charter of the City of Canfield, I 
move that Council dispense with the requirement of two readings of the proposed Ordinance 
and authorize adoption of the same upon it first reading.  
 
MR. NEFF: Second.  
 
   ROLL CALL ON MOTION:    5 Votes-Yes  
          0 Votes-No  
          Motion passes. 
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MR. MORVAY: As per the provisions of Section 4.05 of the Charter of the City of Canfield, I 
move that Council dispense with the requirement of a full reading of the proposed Ordinance 
and authorize reading by title only.   
 
MR. DRAGISH: Second.  
 
   ROLL CALL ON MOTION:    5 Votes-Yes  
          0 Votes-No  
          Motion passes. 
 
MR. NACARATO: Mr. President, I have an Ordinance Amending Ordinance 2023-08 Adopting 
Salary and Benefits for all full and part time non-bargaining unit employees and Declaring an 
Emergency.  I move for passage.   
 
MR. DRAGISH: Second.  
 
CHIEF COLUCCI: I’m going to defer to Patty.  
 
CLERK: The Acting City Manager, Chief Colucci will be compensated $2,500 per pay, effective 
May 1, 2023 thru December 31, 2023. In the event that a permanent city manager is hired prior 
to the end of 2023, the Police Chief will train and assist the City Manager when needed.   
 
MR. MORVAY: Council questions? Hearing none.  Resident, questions?  Hearing none.  
 
   ROLL CALL ON ORDINANCE:    5 Votes-Yes  
          0 Votes-No  
          Ordinance passes. 
          Ordinance 2023-24. 
 
ITEM E: A Motion Naming Lex Calder as Exempt from Term Limits on the Parks, Recreation & 
Cemetery Board.  
 
MR. MORVAY: As per the provisions of Section 4.05 of the Charter of the City of Canfield, I 
move that Council dispense with the requirement of a full reading of the proposed Motion and 
authorize reading by title only.   
 
MR. NACARATO: Second.  
 
   ROLL CALL ON MOTION:    5 Votes-Yes  
          0 Votes-No  
          Motion passes. 
 
MR. TIECHE: I have a Motion Naming Lex Calder as Exempt from Term Limits on the Parks, 
Recreation & Cemetery Board. I move for passage.  
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MR. DRAGISH: Second.  
 
MR. MORVAY:  Chief, why would we name Lex Calder exempt from term limits? 
 
CHIEF OF POLICE:  Article VII, Boards and Commissions of the City of Canfield Charter, Section 
7.02 provides for each board, commission or committee may designate one person of 
exceptional, professional qualifications to be exempt from term limits with council’s approval.  
That exception is not transferrable and will remain with only that person, until that person is no 
longer on that board or commission.  This motion designates Lex Calder as the exempt member 
from term limits for the Parks, Recreation & Cemetery Board.  
 
MR. MORAY: I’ll just comment, he’s exemplified professionalism in what he’s done and brought 
the pump track to us. He’s even getting his certified arborist. 
 
MR. NEFF: How many terms has he served on Parks? 
 
CLERK: This is his first term. 
 
MR. NEFF: I think he’s a great candidate and probably well deserving of this but I’m surprised 
that we’re doing it on his first term. Aren’t you allowed to have 3 terms.  
 
CLERK: Two.  
 
MR. MORVAY: Residents any questions?  Hearing none.   
 
   ROLL CALL ON MOTION:   5 Votes-Yes   
         0 Votes-No   
         Motion passes. 
         Motion 2023-09. 
 
ITEM F: A Motion Appointing an Acting Manager.  
 
MR. MORVAY: As per the provisions of Section 4.05 of the Charter of the City of Canfield, I 
move that Council dispense with the requirement of a full reading of the proposed Motion and 
authorize reading by title only.   
 
MR. NACARATO: Second.  
 
   ROLL CALL ON MOTION:   5 Votes-Yes   
         0 Votes-No   
         Motion passes. 
 
MR. NEFF:  Mr. President, I have a Motion Appointing an Acting Manager.  I move for passage.  
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MR. NACARATO: Second.  
 
MR. MORVAY:  Patty why are we appointing an acting manager? 
 
CLERK: I’ll defer to Chuck.  
 
CHIEF OF POLICE:  This was more my idea.  Section 5.05 of the Charter requires that Council 
designate an individual who will serve as acting city manager during the absence or disability of 
a manager. This designation is made by the city manager for temporary absence or disability.  I 
made this recommendation, basically to make sure that council knows and the community 
knows and the people that I’ve highlighted here know, that if I’m on vacation or unavailable, 
basically it creates a new chain of command.  These people all know that they’re all going to 
work together with city council, as I would or the current city manager would. What I’m 
recommending, it’s just creating structure and a chain of command, so that in the event I’m not 
available, as you notice it was 3 deep, we made it 5 deep.  I just wanted to make it very clear 
because we certainly have talented, capable leaders within the city organization. They’re going 
to rely on the President of City Council, City Council members to assist them, if there is time 
available to make decisions.  As I’ve outlined, it’s always been the Police Chief, the Finance 
Director, I wanted to add in the Assistant Police Chief, Scott Weamer, followed by the Public 
Works Superintendent, John Rapp and then Lieutenant Ruiz.  It would take a lot. There are no 
planned times where all of us are going to be out of town. We work together. I just want 
council to feel comfortable in this uncertain period where we have an Acting City Manager. I 
want the community to feel comfortable. We thought this out, we thought it through.  Again, 
there is no time where we’re all going to be out of town.  I just wanted to give you guys a chain 
of command.  There is going to be a week that I’m going to be out of town.   
 
MR. MORVAY: Don’t take a ride on the same bus or go in a submarine.   
 
CHIEF OF POLICE: Nothing like that.  I believe that every one of these individuals listed here are 
capable, professional people, that have been here for a long time and certainly understand the 
workings of the city.  John Rapp could have been number 3 but the police department is a 
tremendous liability when it comes down to a police chase or a shooting. I don’t want to put 
that burden on these people that aren’t familiar with working with the safety service.  If 
something critical does happen, I don’t want that burden on them.  That why Weamer is in 
there.  It’s a formality. Communication is key, working together, each and every one of you.   
 
MR. MORVAY: Council questions?   
 
MR. NEFF: I applaud this. It was sent out and council could have discussed it but I think this 
should have been discussed by Council.  I really think a lot of Lieutenant Ruiz.  I’d like to see 
Patty on this as well. Everybody does a great job. She does a spectacular job.   
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CHIEF OF POLICE:  No doubt, she does.   Personalities are present and I just don’t know that she 
would want it.   
 
MR. NEFF: It’s just my opinion.   
 
CHIEF OF POLICE: I respect that.   
 
MR. MORVAY: Residents any questions or concerns?  Hearing none.   
 
   ROLL CALL ON MOTION:   5 Votes-Yes   
         0 Votes-No   
         Motion passes. 
 
ITEM G:  A Motion to authorize the City Manager to apply for F-1 and F-2 Permits as applicable 
from the Ohio Department of Commerce/Division of Liquor Control for Family Fun Night on 
September 21, 2023 and Fall Fest on September 9, 2023. 
 
 
MR. MORVAY: As per the provisions of Section 4.05 of the Charter of the City of Canfield, I 
move that Council dispense with the requirement of a full reading of the proposed Motion and 
authorize reading by title only.   
 
MR. NACARATO: Second.  
 
   ROLL CALL ON MOTION:   5 Votes-Yes   
         0 Votes-No   
         Motion passes. 
 
MR. DRAGISH: Mr. President, I have a Motion to Authorize the City Manager to Apply for F-1 
and F-2 Permits as Applicable from the Ohio Department of Commerce/Division of Liquor 
Control for Family Fun Night on September 21, 2023 and Fall Fest on September 9, 2023. I move 
for passage. 
 
MR. NACARATO: Second.  
 
MR. MORVAY:  Patty, the Rotary applied for an F-6 Permit, what is the F-1 and F-2 permit? 
 
CLERK: The F-6 is because you’re having wine.  You can only have that on the north end of the 
Green.  
 
MORVAY: Oh. 
 
MR. TIECHE: I have a question with regards to the other dates.  The September 21st and 
September 9th dates, who is going to be serving the liquor? 
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CHIEF OF POLICE: City employees.   
 
MR. TIECHE: Mark is of the opinion that the F-1 and F-2 allows the city to actually sell liquor.  I 
am not of that opinion. I am of the opinion that the city can authorize that to be on those 
properties but not to have the city be selling it.  My personal opinion is, our employees should 
not be selling alcohol.  I will be voting against the legislation.   
 
CHIEF OF POLICE: With your concern and Mark not being here and I’m not comfortable 
speaking, we didn’t have that conversation. Should we table it?   
 
MR. TIECHE: Well, do we have enough time? 
 
CHIEF OF POLICE: Mark will be back for the July 12th meeting.   
 
MR. TIECHE: If the other members of council are in favor of it, then don’t worry about it.  
 
CHIEF OF POLICE:  If they don’t want to table it and they want to move forward, we’ll certainly 
address your concern.   
 
MR. MORVAY: We’re authorizing the city manager to apply for F-1 and F-2 permits. We may 
have to get somebody else to serve it.   
 
MR. DRAGISH: This is just for the application.  
 
CHIEF OF POLICE:  Yes.   
 
MR. TIECHE: That’s my only issue, city employees doing it.  If we had another organization, if 
Rotary wanted to step up and do that, then we authorized that on city property.  Clearly, F-1 
and F-2 allows us to do that.   
 
MR. MORVAY: I think Mr. Tieche brings up a good concern.  I think we can still go forward with 
this. If it passes we have to look and see………… 
 
CHIEF OF POLICE: This is simply applying for the permit. We’ll definitely explore that. We 
certainly don’t want to put us in a situation where we’re doing something that we shouldn’t be 
doing.    
 
MR. MORVAY: Residents, questions?  Hearing none.  
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ROLL CALL ON MOTION: 4 Votes-Yes  
1 Vote-No (Mr. Tieche) 
Motion passes. 
Motion 2023-11. 

Under COUNCIL COMMENTS: 

MR. TIECHE:  I think I’ve made enough comments for this evening. 

MR. NEFF:  I just want to congratulate Rotary for keeping the gazebo work together and 
proceeding under lightning strikes and everything else.  Have the community enjoy the longest 
day of the year.  

MR. DRAGISH:  Just looking forward to the 4th of July Parade coming up.  Hopefully, everybody 
got the proper information in to the proper people.  I got a call today because I forgot to sign 
something.  I’m looking forward to that and looking forward to the next couple of weeks of 
celebration on our Green because it’s always a good time.  I think we get the most amount of 
people during that particular time. It’s enjoyable to talk to people and see the good things that 
are happening in our community.   

MR. NACARATO: Just a reminder that we’re doing the ribbon cutting ceremony on the 17th of 
July and I encourage everyone to be there, starting at 6:00 pm. I want to thank the entire 
community and LED3 for all their work on the audio part of it and the entire community for 
getting behind us for the gazebo project.  It was a successful project. The fundraising went well. 
We were able to pay for the whole thing through the fundraising. Come join us and let’s 
celebrate.  

MR. MORVAY: I know we don’t get a lot of participants here in person to see council but I get a 
lot of comments from people that go online and watch these meetings I encourage you to do 
so.  This is an important year, this year.  We have an election coming up and 4 seats are up for 
grabs.  If you’ve not been active in city government, I’d encourage you to be.  Get the facts and 
vote.  Thank you. This meeting is adjourned.   

________________________
PRESIDENT OF COUNCIL

ATTEST:
_________________________
CLERK OF COUNCIL
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